
 
 
 
 
 

Pride ~ Progress ~ Possibilities 

 
 
 
 

Riverside Municipal Building 
5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100 

Riverside, Ohio 45431 
 
  

 
October 6, 2022 

 
 

Council Meeting 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 
 
 

 
 

City Council 
 

PETER J. WILLIAMS, MAYOR 
  

MIKE DENNING  
APRIL FRANKLIN 

BRENDA FRY 
ZACHARY JOSEPH 

SARA LOMMATZSCH 
JESSE MAXFIELD 

 
 
 

Josh Rauch, City Manager 
 

Katie Lewallen, Clerk of Council 



January
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

February
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28

March
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

April
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

May
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

June
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

July
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

August
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

September
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

October
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

November
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

December
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Calendar for year 2022 (United States)

Jan 6
Jan 13
Jan 20
Feb 3
Feb 10
Feb 17
Feb 21
Mar 3
Mar 10
Mar 17
Apr 7
Apr 14
Apr 21
May 5
May 12
May 19

May 30
Jun 2
Jun 9
Jun 16
Jul 4
Jul 7
Jul 14
Jul 21
Aug 4
Aug 11
Aug 18
Sep 1
Sep 5
Sep 8
Sep 15
Oct 6

Oct 13
Oct 20
Nov 3
Nov 8
Nov 10
Nov 11
Nov 17
Nov 24
Nov 25
Dec 1
Dec 8
Dec 15
Dec 23
Dec 26

Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Offices Closed
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting

Offices Closed
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Offices Closed
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Council Meeting
Offices Closed
Work Session
Council Meeting
Council Meeting

Work Session
Council Meeting
Council Meeting
Election Day
Work Session
Offices Closed
Council Meeting
Offices Closed
Offices Closed
Council Meeting
Work Session
Council Meeting
Offices Closed
Offices Closed



 
 

AGENDA 



Please place all cell phones in silent mode before the meeting begins. 
 

 
If you need special accommodations to attend this meeting, 

please notify the City of Riverside at least 72 hours in advance by calling 937.233.1801. 
 
 

 

RIVERSIDE CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER 

2) ROLL CALL 

3) EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 

4) ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

6) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 

7) PROCLAMATION – Celebrating a Riverside Centenarian, John Mauro 

8) MINUTES – Approval of minutes from the September 15, 2022, council business meeting and 
September 22, 2022, work session. 

9) ACCEPTANCE OF CITIZEN PETITIONS  

10) DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 

A) Police Department  

B) Fire Department 

C) Public Service Department 

D) City Manager Report 

11) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

12) OLD BUSINESS 

    A) ORDINANCES  

I) Ordinance No. 22-O-807 – An ordinance to approve employee position titles, 
number of positions and pay ranges and to repeal Ordinance No. 22-O-796 
passed June 2, 2022. (2nd reading, public hearing, adoption) 

Riverside Administrative Offices 
5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100 
Riverside, Ohio 45431 
 

Thursday, October 6, 2022 
Business Meeting 6:00 P.M. 

 
 

 



 
 

II) Ordinance No. 22-O-808 – An ordinance revising Chapter 135 and repealing the 
existing Chapters 137 and 149 of the Administrative Code of the City of 
Riverside, Ohio. (2nd reading, public hearing, adoption) 

13) NEW BUSINESS 

    A) ORDINANCES  

I) Ordinance No. 22-O-809 – An ordinance declaring city property on Richland 
Drive, Parcel ID No. I39101406 0019, to no longer be needed for municipal 
purposes and to be surplus and authorizing the city manager to execute 
documents necessary to sell said property and declaring an emergency. (1st 
reading) 

 B) RESOLUTIONS 

I) Resolution No. 22-R-2794 – A resolution accepting the amounts and rates as 
determined by the Budget Commission and authorizing the necessary tax levies 
and certifying them to the county auditor.  

II) Resolution No. 22-R-2795 – A final resolution authoring the city manager to 
enter into an agreement with ODOT for the replacement of Bridge No. MOT-
3048T-0003 located on Olentangy Drive over Lilly Creek.  

14) PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

15) COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

16) EXECUTIVE SESSION – 103.01(3) Conferences with any attorney representing the City 
as counsel, concerning disputes involving the City, its council, boards, commissions, 
officials, and employees that are the subject of pending or imminent court action or 
discussions of any matters which are properly covered under the attorney-client 
privilege as recognized by the law of Ohio. 

17) RECONVENE 

18) ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

PROCLAMATION 



 

City of Riverside, Ohio 
A Proclamation Recognizing the Centennial Birthday of 

John Mauro 
 Whereas, longevity of life is a blessing for an individual and for a community which benefits from the 
knowledge, creativity, and experiences an individual brings to all; and 

 Whereas, Mr. John Mauro was born in Dayton, Ohio, on October 8, 1922, and in 1957 moved to Riverside, 
Ohio, with his wife, Rita, with whom he celebrated 72 years of marriage until her passing in 2020; and  

 Whereas, John is the father of three children: Kathy, Tom, and Patti, and to two grandsons, Nick and Keith; 
in addition to being the only brother to three sisters and uncle to 25 nieces and nephews; and 

 Whereas, John served in the United States Army at the end of World War II, attended the University of Dayton 
up to the birth of his first child; and worked for Standard Register, Harris Seybold, and retired from Hobart; and 

 Whereas, John has been an active parishioner at St. Helen since 1957; and 

 Whereas, John has been a UD basketball season ticket holder for 71 years, as well as a diehard Notre Dame 
fan; and 

 Whereas, John is a superior gardener, who for many years carefully and meticulously packaged and shipped 
his home grown tomatoes from Riverside to his daughters in Florida, so they would not miss out on his well 
cultivated Midwestern crops; and 

 Whereas, John is the last surviving original homeowner in his neighborhood, and is a steadfast neighbor, who 
helped all who needed him. 

 Now, Therefore, be it Proclaimed that Saturday, October 8, 2022, be known as John Mauro Day in recognition 
and honor of his long life and service to his community and his family.     

Signed under my hand and seal this 6th day of October 2022. 
_______________________________________ 
Peter J. Williams, MAYOR 



 
 

MINUTES 



 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 

Page 1 of 6 
 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Williams called the Riverside, Ohio City Council Meeting to 
order at 6:00 p.m. at the Riverside Administrative Offices located at 5200 Springfield Street, 
Suite 100, Riverside, Ohio, 45431. 
    
ROLL CALL:  Council attendance was as follows: Mr. Denning, present; Mrs. Franklin, 
absent; Ms. Fry, present; Mr. Joseph, present; Ms. Lommatzsch, present; Mr. Maxfield, 
present; and Mayor Williams, present. 
 
Staff present was as follows: Josh Rauch, City Manager; Chris Lohr, Assistant City 
Manager; Tom Garrett, Finance Director; Dan Stitzel, Fire Chief; Kathy Bartlett, Public 
Service Director; Dalma Grandjean, Law Director; and Katie Lewallen, Clerk of Council.   
   
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS:  Ms. Lommatzsch moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to 
excuse Mrs. Franklin. All were in favor. Motion carried.  
  
ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA: No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Mr. Joseph moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve 
the agenda. All were in favor. Motion carried.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Williams led the pledge of allegiance.  
 
PRESENTATION: Chief Dan Stitzel recognized Firefighter/EMT John Mathy for over 
three decades of fire and EMS service to the City of Riverside. He began as a volunteer 
firefighter with the Mad River Township Fire Department while working a full-time job, and 
then came on as a part-time firefighter. Council thanked him for his years of service and 
wished him well on his retirement.  
 
PROCLAMATION: Mayor Williams read a proclamation recognizing October as National 
Fire Prevention Month. Ms. Lommatzsch added that now is a good time for residents to 
check their smoke detectors. 
 
MINUTES: Mr. Maxfield moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to approve the minutes of the 
September 1, 2022, council business meeting. All were in favor. Motion carried. 
 
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: Deputy Mayor Denning moved, seconded by Ms. Fry, to 
approve Mr. Chuck Evanhoe reappointment to the Tax Review Board. All were in favor. 
Motion carried.  
 
WRITTEN CITIZEN PETITIONS: Mayor Williams stated any citizen wishing to speak 
should fill out a petition found at the back of the room and turn it in to the clerk.  
 
DEPARTMENT UPDATES:  
     
     A) Finance Department – Mr. Garrett stated the finance report was included in the 
council packet and is on the city website. He stated they received three distributions from 



 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 

Page 2 of 6 
 

CCA in August so that is why the amount is larger. They are scheduled to get the next 
distribution this coming Monday. They may not receive another before the end of the month. 
They received the real estate distribution tax this last Friday, and it was posted this morning. 
He added that auditors have requested an extension until the end of September to tie it all 
together, so it is still in process.  
 
Mr. Joseph stated they are calendar year fiscal but asked when they finish their audit. Mr. 
Rauch replied that normally they would have been done, but they had a request for an 
extension to start the process and this is the second or third extension. Mr. Garrett stated it 
is the third or fourth extension. Normally, the audits need to be done by around June or July. 
Mr. Rauch added that the auditors requested the extension and not the city.  
 
     B) Administration  – Mr. Lohr stated they have wrapped up the Office 365 installation. 
If there are any issues using the email or Office apps, he will be glad to help with that.  
 
     C) Community Development Department/City Manager Report – Mr. Rauch stated 
the boards around the council chambers are from last night’s Land Use Plan meeting. 
Anyone from the public can come in to view and participate in discussion when city hall is 
open, and the room is not being used. Someone from staff will be glad to walk residents 
through it. There is also an online component that can be viewed. He thanked Ms. Bartlett 
and the contractors for being willing to delay the Harshman wall repairs by a week in order 
to accommodate the upcoming USAF Marathon. He asked for a motion from council on the 
proclamation process and policy the clerk had sent out to council. He would like to fold that 
into the council handbook unless there are objections. If they would like to discuss it further 
at a work session, they can do that. Ms. Fry stated she had some things she wanted to address. 
Mr. Rauch stated they can put it on a work session. Mr. Rauch stated that power poles have 
been put up along East Springfield Street, and in working with AES, the initial plan was to 
install power lines for a cell tower on a pad. The city asked them to pause and get a quote on 
the cost to bury those cables. The estimate is $80,000. The question right now is whether or 
not they will be required to get additional easements and where they want to route that. This 
will have to come through council. He needs to know if they are interested in pursuing this 
as the amount could be more depending on easements. If they are interested in further 
refining that and get a quote and timeline, he will put that on a work session. It is an aesthetic 
decision. Discussion was held the city being notified on those poles being put in. A lot of 
effort has been put in to make that section of roadway improved in aesthetics and the utility 
poles will take away from that. Mr. Rauch stated a lot of the conversations took place two 
years ago with other staff no longer here. Ms. Lommatzsch added that there has to be 
something in writing that this was going to happen. Mr. Rauch stated he will gather 
information and then they will discuss it further. Mr. Joseph asked how many poles they are 
talking about. Mayor Williams stated it was a series of poles. Ms. Lommatzsch stated there 
has to be a record of how that happened. Mr. Rauch stated they have that. It went through 
an approval process, but all the people who approved it are no longer here. Discussion was 
held on the cost of lighting and the aesthetics. 
 
Mr. Rauch stated that the last thing has to do with the Woodman Bridge replacement project 
and that council was heavily involved in that several years ago. A component of that project 



 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 

Page 3 of 6 
 

had to do with adding lighting to the bridge. ODOT contacted the city about concern of the 
cost of the lighting being substantially higher than what was initially estimated. They need 
to let the project out to bid and need to know what the city wants with regard to the lighting. 
Mr. Rauch recommends telling ODOT to bid the project without the lights but bid it so the 
lights can be put in later. The bridge will still be built with the necessary conduit and 
materials to put in the light poles, but they aren’t going to add the light poles and lighting 
materials as part of the project. They may still pay more for the bridge but will pay less if 
the light was included. Also, as they continue to look at the Woodman corridor, they may be 
able to get grants and have someone else pay for the lighting. If they need to talk about it, 
then he can add it. Mayor Williams stated he likes the plan Mr. Rauch has outlined. Mr. 
Rauch stated ODOT needs an answer right away. Ms. Lommatzsch stated they agreed to go 
with the $200,000 to add the lighting. She will be disappointed if they do not do a good job 
on this project and add the lighting. Mr. Rauch stated they aren’t talking about eliminating 
the lights. It would be more of a delay. Mr. Joseph stated this is aesthetic when compared to 
needing firefighters and police. He has zero appetite for aesthetics when it comes to an 
understaffed fire department, a suffering police department and the roads are deteriorating. 
Mr. Maxfield agreed. Mr. Joseph stated this is what he is passionate about. It has been 27 
years of fiscal irresponsibility, and this is what they are dealing with. Ms. Lommatzsch stated 
it is safety not aesthetics as a lot of people walk that bridge. Mr. Joseph stated that the ODOT 
would not be recommending against it if it was for safety. Ms. Lommatzsch stated she does 
not wish to discuss this anymore.  
 
Ms. Lommatzsch left at 6:26 pm. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS: No one wished to speak on agenda items.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
     A. ORDINANCES 

 
I) Ordinance No. 22-O-806 – An ordinance amending Section 1113.19 

Floodplain Design Standards of the Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) of the City of Riverside, Ohio. (2nd reading, public hearing, and 
adoption) 

 
Mr. Rauch stated this is the second reading for the floodplain ordinance. 
 
Mr. Maxfield moved, seconded by Deputy Mayor Denning, to approve the second reading 
of Ordinance No. 22-O-806. The clerk read the ordinance by title only.  
 
Mayor Williams opened the public hearing at 6:26 pm. No one came forward. Mayor 
Williams closed the public hearing at 6:26 pm. 
 
Roll call went as follows: Mr. Maxfield, yes; Mr. Denning, yes; Ms. Fry, yes; Mr. Joseph, 
yes; and Mayor Williams, yes. Motion carried.  
 



 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 

Page 4 of 6 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
     A. ORDINANCES 
 

I) Ordinance No. 22-O-807 – An ordinance to approve employee position 
titles, number of positions and pay ranges and to repeal Ordinance No. 
22-O-796 passed June 2, 2022. (1st reading) 

 
Mr. Rauch stated this is the first reading to backfill for the SRO position in the police 
department and reclassify the engineering inspector to a maintenance worker in the public 
service department.  
 
Deputy Mayor Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 22-O-807. The clerk read the ordinance by title only. 
 
Roll call went as follows: Mr. Denning, yes; Mr. Maxfield; Ms. Fry; Mr. Joseph, yes; and 
Mayor Williams, yes. Motion carried. 
 

II) Ordinance No. 22-O-808 – An ordinance revising Chapter 135 and 
repealing the existing Chapters 137 and 149 of the Administrative Code 
of the City of Riverside, Ohio. (1st reading) 

 
Mr. Rauch stated this ordinance would permit staff to reject or revoke permits based on 
specific criteria and remove some redundancies in the existing code.  
 
Deputy Mayor Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 22-O-808. The clerk read the ordinance by title only. 
 
Roll call went as follows: Mr. Denning, yes; Mr. Maxfield; Ms. Fry; Mr. Joseph, yes; and 
Mayor Williams, yes. Motion carried. 
 
     B. RESOLUTIONS 

 
I) Resolution No. 22-R-2790 - A resolution authorizing the city manager to 

enter into a professional services agreement with Raftelis for property 
maintenance and enforcement code review.  

 
Mr. Rauch stated this resolution allows them to obtain professional services to rewrite the 
existing property maintenance code based on comparables and other best practices.  
 
Deputy Mayor Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve Resolution No. 22-
R-2790. 
 
All were in favor. Motion carried. 
 



 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 

Page 5 of 6 
 

II) Resolution No. 22-R-2791 – A resolution authorizing the city manager to 
enter into a lease, purchase, and maintenance agreement for eight Sharp 
digital copy machines under the State of Ohio Cooperative Bid Program. 

 
Mr. Rauch stated that this resolution is to renew the copier contract.  
 
Mr. Maxfield moved, seconded by Deputy Mayor Denning, to approve Resolution No. 22-
R-2791. 
 
All were in favor. Motion carried. 
 

III) Resolution No. 22-R-2792 – A resolution authorizing the city manager to 
make application to the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission 
(MVRPC) for the purpose of obtaining Transportation Alternatives 
Program (TAP) funds for the Woodman Phase 1 Project. 

 
Mr. Rauch stated this allows them to apply for Transportation Alternatives Program funds 
through the MVRPC and help support funding for Woodman Phase 1, which is to go in 2025.  
 
Deputy Mayor Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Maxfield, to approve Resolution No. 22-
R-2792. 
 
All were in favor. Motion carried. 
 

IV) Resolution No. 22-R-2793 – A resolution of consent to enter into an 
agreement with ODOT for Bridge Inspection Program Services. 

 
Mr. Rauch stated that ODOT provides bridge inspection services at no cost to municipalities 
and this resolution allows them to do it for them.  
 
Mr. Maxfield moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to approve Resolution No. 22-R-2793. 
 
All were in favor. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS: Mayor Williams stated one person 
wished to speak on non-agenda items. He invited Mr. Nieberding to the podium and asked 
him to state his name and address and keep comments to three minutes. Mr. Dale Nieberding, 
4730 Sheller Avenue, Riverside, OH, 45432, stated he has four areas of consideration. One 
is for a city ordinance regarding truck brake use off SR 35. A lot of times in order to stop 
using their brakes, they downshift and there is a loud rumbling sound that can be heard from 
a quarter of a mile away. This decreases citizen quality of life. He asked if signs could be 
posted for that as he has seen in other cities. The second concern is for a wall to be installed 
for highway sound barriers included in the upgrades for route 35. He lived next to highway 
in Canada and the walls are very effective. He was just a block away and could barely tell 
he lived next to a highway. He now lives a quarter of a mile from the highway, and he hears 
the traffic regularly. The third concern is for the work done on Eastman Road, and there was 



 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 

Page 6 of 6 
 

a change in the trigger mechanism in the road. Today, he was on the road and there were 12 
cards backed up. It needs to trigger so that it regulates faster because cars are backing up and 
they are starting to dart out into traffic when it is on the red. That is a hazard. The fourth 
concern is a welcome sign and landscaping at Woodman Drive eastbound on SR 35 similar 
to Austin Landing at Linden Avenue to give a better presentation to everybody that drives 
along there of who we are as Riverside. Mayor Williams pointed out the renderings in the 
lobby for the signage that is to be used in the bridge design work. He feels the bridge will be 
a very prominent welcome to the city. It may not look like Austin Landing, but there is work 
being done and that is on the way. He stated the city manager will be responsive to the other 
items he has stated.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS: Mayor Williams thanked several community 
partners as he and the city manager attended a meeting with the superintendent yesterday. 
He stated there is a new connection, Neighborhood Bridges. This has come to the Mad River 
district. There was a news article in the Dayton Daily News last week with the 
superintendent, and he invites a number of community partners to his meetings that he pulls 
together on a monthly basis. They were able to hear where that program started and how it 
is taking root over a short time in the community. He wants the city to share that as they can 
to help folks in need. This crowd sources some things for people in the community. He 
thanked a number of legislative delegates in the region, who over the last two weeks 
provided letters of support for the Riverside community for a couple of transportation grants 
they are going after now made possible through the infrastructure bill. Everyone that he, 
Josh, and Kathy talked to was more than willing to lend support for their community across 
the political aisle. On the national level it looks like no one gets along, but in this part of the 
country, even if they don’t agree on everything, they do want to do what is right and what is 
best. He was glad to see how quickly people got back to them and support them.  
 
Ms. Fry reminded everyone that the Historical Society is having an ice cream social this 
Saturday from noon to 4:00 pm.in Airway Shopping Center.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Deputy Mayor Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to adjourn. 
All were in favor. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 6:37 pm. 
 
 
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Peter J. Williams, Mayor                               Clerk of Council  



 
 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 

Page 1 of 6 
 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Williams called the Riverside, Ohio City Council Work 
Session to order at 6:01 p.m. at the Riverside Administrative Offices located at 5200 
Springfield Street, Suite 100, Riverside, Ohio, 45431. 
    
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Williams led the pledge of allegiance.  
 
ROLL CALL:  Council attendance was as follows: Mr. Denning, present; Mrs. Franklin, 
present; Ms. Fry, present; Mr. Joseph, present; Ms. Lommatzsch, present; Mr. Maxfield, 
present; and Mayor Williams, present. 
 
Staff present was as follows: Josh Rauch, City Manager; and Kathy Bartlett, Public Service 
Director.  
   
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS:  No members were absent. 
  
ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA: No changes were made.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Deputy Mayor Denning moved, seconded by Mr. Joseph, to 
approve the agenda as presented. All were favor. Motion carried.  
 
WORK SESSION ITEMS:  
 
 I. Storm Water Utility – Mr. Rauch stated that this is not a time limited discussion 
should they need to take more time and discuss the storm water utility. He reviewed the 
completed items on the project. They had reviewed previous data collected from Choice One 
and analyzed the information. They requested from MVRPC a more detailed breakout of all 
the parcels and started to merge the information with what Choice One had provided. This 
data will be used to build a master map of impervious surfaces in the community as a 
reference point to not only get a fee implemented, but to maintain and manage that as a 
database going forward. They have conducted an initial review of the parcels. The idea is 
for a utility fee to be as equitable as possible, meaning they charge every parcel that could 
exist in the city that qualifies to pay the fee. They have found there are parcels that are 
subdivided, and some ownership information is not attached to some parcels. There were 
about 500 records where they saw some information needed to be worked out, and they have 
cleaned that up as of last week. This will make sure they avoid double billing. Additionally, 
they have created a draft ordinance that has had legal review, which he has shared with 
council. He wants to get feedback from council on the charging methodology.  
 
Residential Assessment Methodology – Mr. Rauch stated that there is no one right way to 
assess residential parcels for a storm water utility fee. There are a variety of ways to calculate 
and implement fees. It is about council’s discussion and comfort level to an overarching 
policy on how to approach this. The way the ordinance is currently written is to take the 
average square footage of impervious area for all of the residential parcels, average that to 
where it becomes one equivalent residential unit, and that number becomes the basis for 
calculating what non-residential parcels will pay. For instance, if a house is 2,000 sq. ft. and 
there is a commercial property that is 10,000 sq. ft. The commercial property is paying five 



 
 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 

Page 2 of 6 
 

houses worth. A rate is set based on the one house, then all other rates are calculated based 
on that house. He provided a small breakout of this. If they are to adopt that methodology, 
there are about 8,670 residential parcels; the average impervious area for them is 1,874 sq. 
ft. Based on the ordinance in its current draft, one ERU would be equal to 1,874 sq. ft. For 
those parcels that are not an R-1, R-2, or R-3; they would then take the total impervious area 
of that parcel and divide it by 1,874 and apply the residential rate. This rate is simple and 
straightforward; administratively, it is one of the easiest systems to maintain. He stated that 
other communities set different rates for R-1, R-2, R-3. In Riverside, an R-1 has about 2,992 
sq. ft., an R-2 has about 2,552 sq. ft, and an R-3 has about 1,701 sq. ft. Depending on if they 
want to set rates on those zoning classifications, that could impact the bills that residents 
would pay. He asked if they wanted to charge all single family houses the same rate or do 
they want to differentiate by zone or some other criteria. He is requesting council’s 
consensus if they want to go with this methodology or if they need to change it and he needs 
to revisit for another type of calculation.  
 
Mrs. Franklin confirmed that every residential lot would be charged for 1,874 sq. ft. Mr. 
Rauch stated that was correct. He recalled from an earlier discussion that Choice One had a 
cost around $10/month per ERU so that every resident would pay $10 - $11/month regardless 
if they were R-1, R-2, or R-3. He asked if council wants to adjust rates based on zoning. He 
wants them to be comfortable with the overall approach. 
 
Mayor Williams asked what peer communities were doing and if there was a baseline.  Mr. 
Rauch stated it is mixed. Dayton has its own unique methodology. He brought an ordinance 
that is similar to Huber Heights and Trotwood.  
 
Ms. Fry stated she didn’t get a chance to dig into it when Choice One was there, but she feels 
strongly that if they do an average, they are asking R-3 residents to subsidize R-1. She stated 
if they went with option one that is presented, in her opinion they are asking less 
economically advantaged residents to subsidize the more economically advantaged 
residents. If it is not a big economic difference administratively, she would prefer to go with 
option two. Mr. Joseph agreed. He stated an R-1 is almost half of the average, but they are 
contributing double almost what an R-3 lot contribute via their impact on the storm water, 
but there is only a 100 sq. ft. difference between an R-3 and the average. He stated it is 
unequitable in this graph. If the administrative burden isn’t so overwhelming, then he would 
rather them go with the three zoning sectors as that would be the most equitable in his 
opinion.  
 
Mayor Williams asked the city manager what he sees from an administrative standpoint. 
Mayor Williams stated he likes the zoning approach. He asked how much cost they would 
add to go with option two to go by three residential zones, so they aren’t asking the R-3 to 
subsidize the larger estates. Mr. Rauch stated it was not so much work to run the calculations, 
but what they should think about with option two is if the zoning code changes, then that 
creates more work and will have direct implications for the storm water ordinance. If they, 
for instance, add two more residential classifications, that would require more work to go 
back through all the numbers to update calculations to reflect the new zoning code. He added 



 
 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 

Page 3 of 6 
 

that zoning codes don’t change that often, so it is about as impactful as any other ordinance 
change. There are implications beyond setting the rate.  
 
Mr. Joseph asked what it would look like if they did a real average based upon an average 
impervious unit based on 1,874 sq, ft, at $10/month. For instance, if his property was only 
1,500 sq. ft., then he would be charged like $8.75/month. Would they be able to get a real 
cost? Mr. Rauch replied that would be significant administrative work. Mrs. Franklin 
mentioned that a lot of larger lots don’t have structures that cover the entire lot. So, they may 
seem like a large lot, but they aren’t creating more of a hardship to the storm water runoff; 
it is because they have more space where it is absorbed into the ground. She stated they all 
pay the same price for their trash regardless of whether or not they have one trash can or two 
trash cans at the curb. It would be nice to know if they charged an R-1 for what they had, 
how much more would it be than the $11/month. Mr. Maxfield asked if they charge for each 
zone, will that increase the price of what people will be charged because they won’t have an 
average charge rate; won’t that adjust what each person will be charged. So, instead of $11 
for everybody, it could be $15 for R-1, and $7 for R-3. Mr. Rauch stated it could impact it. 
Mr. Maxfield stated the bottom dollar amount might go up than the average. Mr. Rauch 
stated he understands what he is saying and added that is accurate if what they are doing is 
charging .05/sq. ft. for impervious area. He stated it is within council’s power to set the R-
1, R-2, and R-3, rates to be whatever they see as reasonable as there are rational basis. They 
are able to set a rate and then just have a few dollars difference between zones. The question 
then becomes how they will charge the commercial or non-residential areas.  
 
Deputy Mayor Denning presented a hybrid version. He stated if they go with the 1,874 sq. 
ft. for an ERU, then an R-3 would be charged .90 percent of that. An R-1 would pay 1.59 
percent of an ERU. They can then still use the ERU average for commercial properties. He 
didn’t work out the R-2 charge but stated it would be around 1.45 percent. This saves them 
from coming up with a cost per sq. ft. for commercial and non-residential and it keeps them 
charging people appropriately. He stated that he also agrees with April that larger lots do 
have a lot more water going into the ground and not going into the city. Mayor Williams 
stated they are just talking about impervious surface.  
 
Ms. Fry stated that she does not believe they have the technical expertise to say which is 
more cost advantageous because an R-3 is denser, and they are building a less expansive 
network.  
 
Ms. Lommatzsch asked if they looked at any of the study they paid for with Choice One and 
all of their numbers. Mr. Rauch stated that was the basis for the request to MVRPC to get to 
the root of how it was all laid out. Ms. Lommatzsch stated they had it all broken down. Mr. 
Rauch stated there were some gaps in the data, which is what they tried to fill in with some 
of the MVRPC information.  
 
Mr. Joseph asked Ms. Bartlett to April and Mike’s point is the fact that they have a larger 
grass and dirt area, is their impact to the storm water less. Ms. Bartlett replied yes. Mr. Rauch 
stated they are in the weeds a bit and what they are now talking about are the kind of the 
things that inform how everyone across the country does a storm water utility fee. It is easy 



 
 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 

Page 4 of 6 
 

to want to go and look at individual properties and their impact, but in a utility fee the idea 
is to get to a level and consistent, rational basis for how all parcels get charged. That is why 
in the ordinance there is an appeal process and a review process. If an individual believes 
they should have additional review or are different enough from the average, there is a 
process to get their fee adjusted. Regardless of who they are, everyone benefits directly or 
indirectly from effective storm water management as they all want good roads to drive on. 
The general approach is to come up with a consistent methodology, give people an appeals 
process, and that meets what is needed to get the fee done.  
 
Ms. Fry stated she is comfortable with option two and the hybrid option suggested by Deputy 
Mayor Denning. She stated she would be uncomfortable with option one. Mayor Williams 
stated his concern with the hybrid option is that it is a pretty big range. It is a 50 percent 
difference per month and over the course of year. That is a decent percentage range. He 
recalled at one point of the conversation they did not want to have a big variance. Ms. Fry 
stated it wasn’t variance; they wanted it to be reflective of the numbers that were in the chart. 
Mayor Williams stated that if they want it to be reflective of the average impervious surface, 
then that is right. He pointed out that it is a big range difference to sell in his mind. A 50 
percent range is not an insignificant amount. It is a big range on the hybrid plan; the math is 
spot on. Ms. Fry stated she thought the hybrid plan is a way of implementing option two. 
Mayor Williams stated that it is, but there was another option in discussion in putting out a 
smaller range difference in the per month charge. Ms. Fry stated that gets away from the 
point of going with option two because if R-1 has almost twice as much impervious surface 
and they are trying to shrink the differential then it is closer to option one and defeats the 
purpose of option two. Deputy Mayor Denning stated that R-1s and R-2s when paying 
property taxes are probably paying more than 50 percent more than R-3s depending on the 
value of the home. Mayor Williams stated that his point is that it is not a small amount.  
 
Mr. Rauch asked if council wanted some type of adjustment factor that addresses the 
differences in zoning that gets them to a place where the spread between fees isn’t huge, but 
there is some difference. If they are willing to entertain that, he can bring them some 
additional information. Mayor Williams stated that he agrees with Ms. Fry that there needs 
to be a difference because R-3 should not be subsidizing R-1. Mrs. Franklin stated they can 
set the amount for whatever they want like $15, $13, and $11. They can pick three fees and 
if they add another zoning district then can set that. Mr. Joseph commented that the amount 
of home a person can afford should be three times your household income. There should be 
income to overcome that additional cost; bigger properties come with more fees, more 
maintenance, more heating and air costs. Storm water is no different. Mrs. Franklin 
disagreed. She stated a person can build a home in an R-3 zone now that is way more 
expensive than Deputy Mayor Denning’s property and two acres left and they pay way more 
in taxes and everything else. She keeps coming back to that and that is where she has a 
problem. Just because an R-1 has more sq. ft., she doesn’t understand for why they are 
charging this why that property is charged more than anyone else. Ms. Fry asked her why is 
the fact that they have significantly more impervious surface not relevant. Mrs. Franklin 
stated it had to do with her earlier comment with just because they have more land doesn’t 
mean they create….Mayor Williams stated it doesn’t have to do with land, this is how much 
of the land is covered with a house or a driveway. Mr. Joseph stated based on the grid they 



Thursday, September 22, 2022 

are looking at the average R-1 has almost double the impervious surface of an R-3. 
Discussion was had on the size of the lot and the size of the home. Ms. Fry stated the numbers 
they have tell them a story. Mrs. Franklin stated she comes back to the garbage example (of 
all paying the same amount) and that she doesn’t know if an R-1 creates any more or less 
storm water runoff than an R-3. She doesn’t feel like the R-3 is picking up like a 
responsibility that an R-1 is creating more of something.  

Mr. Joseph stated it they just set a fee, then anybody in the city can come in and get two 
storm water barrels and adjust the fee by filling out a form. They can’t eliminate it, but they 
can reduce it. Discussion continued on how a person could reduce their fee.  

Mr. Rauch stated they are likely to make some staff additions to help with the billing and 
collections along with the administration. This would be paid for with the proceeds of the 
fee. He stated that he thinks he got what he needs from council. There is the easiest and 
simplest way to do it, and he has also heard them requesting if there is a way to provide some 
differentiation in fee based on impervious size but in a way not to create a giant distinction 
or difference between the residential parcels. He can come back to them with his research 
and the impact of that.  

Ms. Lommatzsch stated this is a council decision and does not go to the voters. She stated 
he will get a lot of education necessary either way he goes. She agrees with Mrs. Franklin 
on a flat fee as being the easiest way to go. It will be monumental if they go house by house. 
Mayor Williams stated he does not think anybody is recommending house by house. Ms. 
Lommatzsch stated a flat amount makes the bookkeeping issue easy.  

Mr. Rauch stated if there is anything else in the ordinance, they would like to review they 
can or they can save it until the next work session after he does his research. Mayor Williams 
stated they need to move forward and the quicker they can do this the better. Mr. Rauch 
stated he will revisit the numbers and get it to them by next month. He will give them an 
update along side the budget conversation they will have in October. Deputy Mayor Denning 
asked if other municipalities charge like Five Rivers Metro for their bike paths. Mr. Rauch 
stated that is all over place. Deputy Mayor Denning asked if they paid it. Mr. Rauch replied 
that depends. Deputy Mayor Denning stated the bike paths add to the impervious surface 
and they add water to Lilly Creek, which is one of the largest problems in the city. They 
have funding to pay that. Mrs. Franklin stated that a lot of bike paths are along train 
tracks and that belongs to the county. Deputy Mayor Denning stated it was just a 
question. Mrs. Franklin stated the state should be paying that, in her opinion.  

CITY MANAGER UPDATES: Mr. Rauch stated that the issue with the light poles on 
Springfield Street continues to evolve; he will have more information in the near future. 
Conversations are continuing with them over there; he is optimistic they will get to a place 
to move forward. Deputy Mayor Denning stated they have started the tower. Mrs. Franklin 
stated an AT&T tower went up on Woodman, too. Mr. Rauch stated there is a lot of fiber 
expansion with AT&T and Spectrum.  

Page 5 of 6 



 
 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Mr. Rauch reminded everyone that the boards from the last open house are available at city 
hall and will be up for the next two weeks. The process is also available online for people to 
participate.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS: Mr. Maxfield stated that this week is Stebbins 
homecoming and wished them good luck tonight at their game. The game had to be moved 
to Vandalia Butler, but it will be a good game. He asked everybody going to the dance to be 
safe and make good decisions. Mayor Williams also wished Stebbins good luck. He stated 
there is a Walk-a-thon tomorrow morning on Burkhardt for St. Helen’s school. He hopes the 
kids stay safe walking to Shellabarger and back. He hopes everyone enjoys the beautiful fall 
weather. The next meeting will be the special retreat on October 1, 2022, followed by the 
regular council meeting on October 6, 2022. Deputy Mayor Denning stated the road outside 
city hall is a mess and there will be a hard time with traffic as the haunted house opens this 
weekend. They will see how things go. Mayor Williams stated that there is a lot of 
construction everywhere. Deputy Mayor Denning stated it will all look really nice once it is 
done.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Maxfield moved, seconded by Deputy Mayor Denning, to adjourn. 
All were in favor. The meeting adjourned at 6:42 pm. 
 
 
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Peter J. Williams, Mayor                               Clerk of Council 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 

CALENDAR 



2022 City Council Calendar 
 

September 15, 2022 – Items Due September 7 
 

• Monthly Financial Report 
• Monthly Update: Finance, Administration, Community Development, CM Report 
• Presentation: Fire Department 
• Proclamation: Fire Department 
• Ordinance: Floodplain Text Amendment Update (2nd Reading) 
• Ordinance: Administrative Code Update – Chapter 135, 137, and 149 (1st reading) 
• Ordinance: TO Changes (1st Reading) 
• Resolution: Professional Services for Code Update 
• Resolution: Lease of Copiers 
• Resolution: TAP Grant 
• Resolution: ODOT Bridge Inspection Services 
• Motion: Council Handbook Update 

 

September 22, 2022 – WORK SESSION 
 

• Stormwater Update 
 
 

October 6, 2022 – Items Due September 28 
 

• Monthly Update: Police, Fire, Public Services, and CM Report 
• Motion: Cancel November 17th Meeting due to NLC 
• Proclamation: Riverside Centenarian, John Mauro 
• Ordinance: TO Change (2nd Reading) 
• Ordinance: Admin Code update (2nd Reading) 
• Ordinance: Richland Surplus (1st Reading) 
• Resolution: Advance Payment of Taxes (Tom) 
• Resolution: Final – ODOT and bridge replacement Olentangy Drive over Lilly Creek 
• Executive Session: Legal 

 

October 13, 2022 – WORK SESSION 
 

• FY2023 Budget Work Session 
• Stormwater Update 

 

October 20, 2022 – Items Due October 12 
 

• Monthly Financial Report 
• Monthly Update: Finance, Administration, Community Development, CM Report 
• Liquor License: D2B The Best Inc. (Christopher’s Restaurant and Catering) 
• Ordinance: Richland Surplus (2nd Reading) 



2022 City Council Calendar 
 

• Ordinance: Miami Valley Recycling Rezoning 
• Resolution: Accepting Amounts and Rates as determined by the Budget Commission (Tom) 

 
 

 
• Monthly Update: Police, Fire, Public Services, and CM Report 
• Resolution: VOCA Grant (Skye) 

 

November 10, 2022 – WORK SESSION 
 

• Curb Assessment Policy Update (Kathy/Josh) 
• HSIP Application: Harshman – Valley to Beatrice (Kathy) 
• Crosswalk Design Standard – Choice One Presentation (Kathy) 
• ADA Transition Plan (Kathy) 

 

November 17, 2022 – Items Due November 9 
 

• MEETING CANCELLED 
 

December 1, 2022 – Items Due November 23 
 

• Monthly Update: Police, Fire, Public Services, and CM Report 
• Ordinance: Codification of Ordinances (1st reading) (Katie) 
• Ordinance: Supplemental Appropriations (1st reading) (Tom/Josh) 
• Ordinance: FY2023 Budget Adoption (1st reading) (Josh) 
• Resolution: Annual Public Defender Contract (Katie) 
• Resolution: Mad River Lions Club “Project Share” (Katie) 

 

December 8, 2022 – WORK SESSION 
 

• Next Year’s Organization Meeting 
• Proclamation Policy 
• Meeting dates? 

 

December 15, 2022 – Items Due December 7 
 

• Monthly Financial Report 
• Monthly Update: Finance, Administration, Community Development, CM Report 
• Ordinance: Codification of Ordinances (2nd reading, public hearing, adoption) 
• Ordinance: Supplemental Appropriations (2nd reading) (Tom/Josh) 
• Ordinance: FY2023 Budget Adoption (2nd reading) (Josh) 

November 3, 2022 – Items Due October 26 



 
 

LEGISLATION 



MEETING DATE: October 6, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM: Old Business 

TO: Riverside City Council 

FROM: Chris Lohr, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 22-O-807 - An Ordinance to Approve Employee Position Titles, 

Number of Positions and Pay Ranges and to Repeal Ordinance No. 22-O-796, Passed June 2, 

2022. 

EXPLANATION 

As previously discussed with City Council, staff respectfully requests two changes to the Table of 

Organization as detailed in Exhibit A. First, the amended table adds a Police Officer to account 

for the addition of a School Resource Officer (SRO) to Police Department operations. Second, the 

amended table removes the Engineering Technician and adds a Maintenance Worker to the 

Service Department.  

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Increased costs and/or savings to the 2022 budget are highly dependent on hiring timelines and 

current savings from existing openings. Personnel line items will be evaluated closer to the end 

of the year to determine the need for a possible supplemental appropriation.  

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

N/A 

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A: Table of Organization 



 
                    

                    22-O-807 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE EMPLOYEE POSITION TITLES, NUMBER OF 
POSITIONS AND PAY RANGES AND TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 22-O-796, 
PASSED JUNE 2, 2022. 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has undertaken a review of the present 
organizational structure of the City of Riverside, including position titles, number of 
positions and pay ranges; and 
 
      WHEREAS, the City Manager has made recommendations for the adopting of 
changes thereto.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 
  
 Section 1: That the compensation and number of officials and employees of 

the City of Riverside be fixed as per the attached Exhibit A, and the 
positions listed in Exhibit A are hereby established in respect to 
position, title, authorized number and pay range.   

           
           Section 2: That Ordinance No. 22-O-796, passed June 2, 2022, and all other 

Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance be and 
the same are hereby repealed. 

 
Section 3: That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 

after the earliest date allowed by law. 
 

            PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 
           

APPROVED: 
    

_______________________________ 
                  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
CLERK 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

I, ____________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 
22-O-807 passed by the Riverside City Council on ______________________________. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day 
__________________. 
 
____________________________________ 
CLERK 



ORDINANCE NO. 22-O-807  EXHIBIT "A" 

 
Pay Range 

Position Title Type of 
Position 

Authorized 
Strength 

Appropriated 
Strength 

Minimum Maximum 

COUNCIL      

Clerk of Council FT 1 1 $45,000 $56,000 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE      

City Manager/Director of Personnel FT 1 1 Contract Contract 
Assistant City Manager FT 1 1 $76,000 $102,000 
Administrative Assistant FT 2 2 $31,200 $53,200 
Administrative Assistant PT 1 1 $15.00hr $24.61hr 
Intern PT 1 1 $15.00hr $16.00hr 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT      

Director FT 1 1 $76,000 $102,000 
Finance Administrator FT 1 1 $55,600 $93,000 
Finance Assistant FT 1 1 $36,400 $55,600 
LAW DEPARTMENT      

Law Director FT 1 1 Contract Contract 
Prosecutor FT 1 1 Contract Contract 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT      

Director FT 1 0 $76,000 $102,000 
Economic Development Specialist FT 1 1 $47,000 $72,700 
Zoning Administrator FT 1 1 $47,000 $72,700 
Community Development Technician FT 1 1 $36,400 $55,600 
Code Enforcement Officer FT 1 1 $36,400 $55,600 
FIRE DEPARTMENT      

Chief FT 1 1 $76,000 $102,000 
Battalion Chief FT 3 3 $72,800 $95,000 
Fire Lieutenant/Firefighter/EMT-P* FT 19 16 Contract Contract 
Firefighter/EMT PT 42,000 Hrs 33,000 Hrs $10.00hr $20.00hr 
Administrative Assistant PT 1 1 $15.00hr $24.61hr 
POLICE DEPARTMENT      

Chief FT 1 1 $76,000 $102,000 
Major FT 2 2 $72,800 $95,000 
Sergeants FT 4 4 Contract Contract 
Officer FT 23 23 Contract Contract 
Advocate FT 1 1 $36,400 $55,600 
Records Clerk FT 1 1 $36,400 $55,600 
Property Room Custodian FT 1 1 $36,400 $55,600 
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT**      

Director FT 1 1 $76,000 $102,000 
Administrative Assistant PT 1 1 $15.00hr $24.61hr 
      
Operations Manager FT 1 1 $66,300 $80,500 
Working Foreman FT 1 1 Contract Contract 
Equipment Operator FT 2 2 Contract Contract 
Park Technician FT 2 2 Contract Contract 
Construction Inspector FT 2 2 Contract Contract 
Maintenance Worker FT 3 3 Contract Contract 

 

*No more than three (3) Lieutenants at one time 
**No more than nine (9) total contract personnel, and two (2) bargaining unit members in the same 

position classification in the Public Services Department 
FT=Regular full-time working more than 30 hours per week and no less than 1,560 hours per year 
PT=Regular part-time working 28.5 hours per week or less on an annualized average basis 
T=Temporary Working up 40 hours a week for a definite duration 



MEETING DATE: October 6, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM: Old Business 

TO: Riverside City Council 

FROM: Josh Rauch, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 22-O-808 – An ordinance revising Chapter 135 and repealing the 

existing Chapters 137 and 149 of the Administrative Code of the City of 

Riverside, Ohio.  

EXPLANATION: 

The intention behind this change is to remove a few sections of obsolete code in the 

Administrative Code (135, 137, 149) and change Chapter 135 from “Economic Development 

Department” to "Permitting and Related Fees." 

The items listed under 135.02 were inspired by a variety of other City Codes in the region. An 

exception is item (g), which was drafted by the City Manager. The section addresses situations 

where someone refuses to pull a permit or pulls one and disregards its requirements but wants to 

come back repeatedly for additional permits of the same or similar type. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

N/A 



 
                    

                    22-O-808 

AN ORDINANCE REVISING CHAPTER 135 AND REPEALING THE EXISTING 
CHAPTERS 137 AND 149 OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERSIDE, OHIO. 

WHEREAS, Article VI, Section 3 of the City of Riverside Charter grants the City 
Manager the power to exercise control over all City departments and to recommend to the 
City Council for adoption such measures as he may deem necessary and expedient; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended a revision of Chapter 135, 

repealing Chapters 137 and 149 which have been deemed obsolete after a thorough 
review, and an adoption of an omnibus fee schedule; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Riverside, Ohio, as the legislative body of 

the city, has the authority to establish reasonable fees and fines with respect to the 
administration of the City’s building code, zoning and subdivision ordinances, and other 
codes and regulations; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is City Council’s intent to enact an omnibus resolution including all 

fees for permits, applications and fees and fines under the abovementioned Ordinances, as 
well as providing for the reimbursement to the City of Riverside for expense incurred in 
the administration of said ordinances; 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Riverside Administrative Code must be amended to 

accurately reflect these changes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Riverside, Ohio has held a public hearing 

thereon after notice of the time and place thereof had been given as required by law. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 

Section 1: That Chapter 135, Permitting and Related Fees, as set forth in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as is fully set forth is hereby 
enacted.  

 
Section 2: That existing Chapter 137, Development and Zoning Fees, and Chapter 

149, Planning and Program Management Development, is hereby repealed.  
 
Section 3: That all other fees established by resolution or ordinance of the City of 

Riverside not in conflict with this ordinance shall remain as previously 
adopted. All resolutions or ordinances, or parts of resolutions ordinances 
conflicting with any provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed and of 
no force or effect from date this ordinance is enacted.  

 



 
                    

                    22-O-808 

Section 4:  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest date allowed by law.  

             
PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 

           
 
APPROVED: 

    
 
_______________________________ 

                  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CLERK 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

 
I, __________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Ordinance is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 22-O-808 
passed by the Riverside City Council on ______________________________. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day 
_________________. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
CLERK 



22-O-808 Exhibit A 

 
Riverside, Ohio, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2021-11-04 09:33:23 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 1 of 5 

CHAPTER 135 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT1PERMITTING AND 
RELATED FEES 

135.01 Creation and head. Issuance of permits; fees. 

There shall be established a Department of Economic Development, the head of which shall be the Director 
of Economic Development. The City shall issue permits pursuant to the requirements of the Codified Ordinances 
and applicable laws, rules, regulations, policies, and procedures. The fees for City-issued permits shall be 
established in an omnibus resolution approved by the City Council. 

(Ord. 15-O-570, Passed 2-19-15) 

135.02 Director's powers and duties. Revocation or denial of permits. 

The Director of Economic Development shall have all the powers and duties now or hereafter given the 
Director of Economic Development in municipalities by general law and shall have Supervision over and 
responsibility for the efficient operation of the Department and shall perform such other functions and duties as 
may be prescribed by Charter, ordinance, resolution, by the Administrative Code or by order of the City Manager. 
The following are grounds for revocation or denial of any permit application: 

a. The intentional provision of materially misleading information by the applicant (the provision of 
information is considered “intentional” where the applicant was aware of the inaccuracies or could have 
discovered the inaccuracies with reasonable diligence);  

b. The failure to comply with any condition of a zoning approval, order, or other applicable law, rule, or 
regulation;  

c. The subject site, use, applicant, and/or property owner is otherwise not in compliance with provision(s) of 
City ordinances;  

d. The subject site, use, applicant, and/or property owner is otherwise not in compliance due to incomplete 
work or projects; 

e. The subject site, use, applicant, and/or property owner is not in compliance due to unperformed, slow to 
perform work as part of an open permit, or development was not complete in accordance with the approved plan;  

f. The subject site, use, applicant, and/or property owner has outstanding fines from previous and/or 
ongoing violations of City ordinances. 

g. The subject site, use, applicant, and/or property owner has failed to comply with the terms of a similar 
permit or the requirement to obtain a similar permit two (2) times within the previous twelve (12) months. 

(Ord. 15-O-570, Passed 2-19-15) 

135.03 Director's qualifications and experience. Development review deposit. 

The Director of Economic Development shall have such professional qualifications and experience as are 
determined by the City Manager.  

 

1Charter reference(s)—Council power to create—See Charter § 7.02.  



22-O-808 Exhibit A 
 

 
    Created: 2021-11-04 09:33:23 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 2 of 5 

(a) Collection. Upon the submittal of any plan consisting of a building of more than 1,000 square feet, a 
subdivision of more than a division of land into two parcels, a site plan review or revision to an existing 
approved site plan, a proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) or a revision to an approved PUD, a 
rezoning or like plan, the City Manager or his/her designee shall ensure that a development review deposit 
has been collected in an amount prescribed by the City Council.  

(b) Extraordinary deposits. The City Manager may require a development review deposit to be collected or 
increased when in the sole discretion of the City Manager that the standard development review deposit 
would be inadequate to preserve the cash flow of the City. An extraordinary development review deposit 
shall be in multiples of the standard development review deposit. 

(c) Use of funds. The City Manager shall separately track and account for each project requiring a development 
review deposit. The City Manager shall maintain an inventory of technical and professional development 
review costs incurred by the City for each project and subtract these costs from the development review 
deposit. In the event that a project account contains insufficient funds to cover development review costs, 
the City Manager shall submit to the development project owner/representative an invoice for the 
amount(s) necessary to return the development review deposit project account to its initial balance. 

(d) Approvals subject to payment of the cost. Development-related approvals granted by the Planning 
Commission and/or City Council are not final until all related development review costs have been invoiced 
to the project owner/representative and received by the City Manager. 

(e) Return of unused deposits. Any portion of the funds placed on deposit or additional payments made to the 
City for a development review deposit for augmentation remaining after a development project has 
concluded shall be refunded to the project owner/representative. 

 

(Ord. 15-O-570, Passed 2-19-15) 

135.04 Director's compensation. 

The salary or wage to be paid in regard to said position of Director of Economic Development shall be 
established by the City Manager in accordance with the Charter and ordinances of the City.  

(Ord. 15-O-570, Passed 2-19-15) 

CHAPTER 137 DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING FEES 

137.01 Development review deposit. 

(a) Collection. Upon the submittal of any plan consisting of a building of more than 1,000 square feet, a 
subdivision of more than a division of land into two parcels, a site plan review or revision to an existing 
approved site plan, a proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) or a revision to an approved PUD, a 
rezoning or like plan, the City Manager or his/her designee shall ensure that a review deposit of two hundred 
fifty dollars ($250.00) has been collected and a separate project account has been established with the 
Director of Finance for the reimbursement of City expenses paid to consultants employed by the City for the 
provision of technical and professional services in related project review(s).  

(b) Extraordinary deposits. The City Manager may require a development review deposit to be collected or 
increased when in the sole discretion of the City Manager that the standard development review deposit 
would be inadequate to preserve the cash flow of the City. An extraordinary development review deposit 



22-O-808 Exhibit A 
 

 
    Created: 2021-11-04 09:33:23 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 3 of 5 

shall be in multiples of the standard development review deposit not to exceed any initial deposit of two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00).  

(c) Additional payments to the deposit. Each month after payments have been made to the consultants 
employed by the City to assist in the development review process and the City has been reimbursed its cost 
from the funds on deposit with said City for development review, the Director of Finance shall submit to a 
development project owner/representative an invoice for the amount(s) necessary to return the 
development review deposit project account to its required balance as a revolving fund for the 
reimbursement of actual paid consultant services used in the review of a development project.  

(d) Approvals subject to payment of the cost. Development related approvals granted by the City by its Planning 
Commission and/or its Council are not final until all related development review costs have been invoiced to 
the project owner/representative and received by the Director of Finance.  

(e) Return of unused deposits. Any portion of the funds placed on deposit or additional payments made to the 
City for a development review deposit for augmentation remaining after all invoices from consultants have 
been received, and related payments have been made by the City shall be refunded to the project 
owner/representative.  

(Ord. 95-O-38, Passed 4-6-95) 

137.02 Zoning and occupancy fees. 

A fee as herein below set forth is hereby established for the processing and issuing of certificates, 
applications and appeals as follows:  

(a) Rezoning applications$300.00 

(b) Subdivision applications. 

(1) Preliminary plat300.00 

(2) Final plat500.00 

(3) Replat/lot consolidation100.00 

(4) Street name signsDeveloper Cost 

(5) Lot split250.00 

(c) Planned commercial/planned residential. 

(1) Preliminary plan600.00 

(2) Final plan300.00 

(3) Modification to final plan50.00 

(d) Street/alley easement vacation100.00 

(e) Board of zoning appeals cases. 

(1) Variance. 

A. Residential. 

Major200.00 

Minor100.00 

B. Commercial. 



22-O-808 Exhibit A 
 

 
    Created: 2021-11-04 09:33:23 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 4 of 5 

Major400.00 

Minor200.00 

C. Industrial. 

Major400.00 

Minor200.00 

(2) Conditional use. 

A. Residential200.00 

B. Commercial400.00 

C. Industrial400.00 

(3) Appeals. 

A. Residential200.00 

B. Commercial300.00 

C. Industrial300.00 

Applications for variances, conditional use permits and appeals filed with the Board of Zoning Appeals 
by any public school district or private school offering grades kindergarten and above shall be exempt 
from the fees established in this subsection (e).  

(f) Site plan review. 

(1) Major modification$150.00 

(2) Minor modification70.00 

(g) Certificates of zoning compliance. 

(1) Residential. 

A. Major50.00 

B. Minor25.00 

(2) Commercial100.00 

(3) Industrial100.00 

(4) Signs1.00 per 
 ..... square foot 
 ..... (minimum $30.00) 

(5) Accessory structures25.00 

(h) Certificate of zoning occupancy. 

(1) Residential35.00 

(2) Commercial50.00 

(3) Industrial50.00 

(i) Abatement action fee125.00 

The Director of Planning and Program Management or the DPPM designee is hereby authorized and directed 
to collect the fees established herein.  



22-O-808 Exhibit A 
 

 
    Created: 2021-11-04 09:33:23 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 5 of 5 

(Res. 16-R-4153, Passed 3-16-16) 

CHAPTER 149 PLANNING AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT2 

149.01 Creation and head. 

There shall be established a Department of Planning and Program Management, the head of which shall be 
the Director of Planning and Program Management.  

(Ord. 15-O-569, Passed 2-19-15) 

149.02 Director's powers and duties. 

The Director of Planning and Program Management shall have all the powers and duties now or hereafter 
given the Director of Planning and Program Management in municipalities by general law and shall have 
Supervision over and responsibility for the efficient operation of the Department and shall perform such other 
functions and duties as may be prescribed by Charter, ordinance, resolution, by the Administrative Code or by 
order of the City Manager.  

(Ord. 15-O-569, Passed 2-19-15) 

149.03 Director's qualifications and experience. 

The Director of Planning and Program Management shall have such professional qualifications and 
experience as are determined by the City Manager.  

(Ord. 15-O-569, Passed 2-19-15) 

149.04 Director's compensation. 

The salary or wage to be paid in regard to said position of Director of Planning and Program Management 
shall be established by the City Manager in accordance with the Charter and ordinances of the City.  

(Ord. 15-O-569, Passed 2-19-15) 

 

 
2Charter reference(s)—Council power to create—See Charter § 7.02.  



 
 

MEETING DATE: October 06, 2022 
AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

 
TO:  Riverside City Council 
 
FROM: Josh Rauch, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 22-O-809 – An ordinance declaring city property located on 

Richland Drive, Parcel ID No. I39101406 0019, to no longer be needed for 
municipal purposes and to be surplus and authorizing the City Manager to 
execute documents necessary to sell said property and declaring an emergency.  

 
EXPLANATION: 
The parcel (I39101406 0019) in question on Richland Drive encompasses the driveway for 4308 
Richland Drive. The property owner of 4308 Richland Drive started the REAP (Real Estate 
Acquisition Program) application process to obtain this parcel in 2013 but did not complete it. 
The parcel was acquired by the City in 2017. The current owner of 4308 Richland Drive is in the 
process of selling the property. He discovered though a title search that Parcel #I39101406 0019 
was still owned by the City of Riverside. The City will aid the property owner in preparing 
documents needed to transfer to property to them after the sale and consolidate the two parcels 
into one lot.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Proceeds from the sale will be deposited into the General Fund.  
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
N/A 



 
                    

                    22-O-809 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CITY PROPERTY LOCATED ON RICHLAND 
DRIVE, PARCEL ID NO. I39101406 0019, TO NO LONGER BE NEEDED FOR 
MUNCIPAL PURPOSES AND TO BE SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE  
CITY MANAGER TO EXCUTE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO SELL SAID 
PROPERTY AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 WHEREAS, the City owns a parcel of land located on Richland Drive (Parcel ID # 
I39101406 0019); and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager reports that the land on Richland Drive identified at 
Parcel #I39101406 0019 is no longer needed for municipal purposes, and the City 
Manager therefore recommends that it be declared surplus and sold; and  

WHEREAS, the purchase of Parcel #I39101406 0019 (Richland Drive) by Mr. 
Jeffrey Lane will result in ownership of this property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF OHIO: 

Section 1: That it is the legislative determination of this Council that the 
municipal real property identified as Parcel ID# I39101406 0019 is 
no longer needed for municipal purposes and that said property is 
hereby declared to be surplus. 

Section 2: That the City Manager is authorized to dispose of said property and 
is further authorized to execute a sale agreement, proper deed, lot 
consolation, and other  documents necessary to affect the sale of 
said property. Proceeds of the sale of said property are to be 
deposited in the General Fund.  

Section 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 
the date of its passage.  

            PASSED THIS DAY OF ____________________________. 
           

APPROVED: 
    

 
_______________________________ 

                  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CLERK 

 



 
                    

                    22-O-809 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK 
 

I, ____________________________, Clerk of the City of Riverside, Ohio, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 
22-O-809 passed by the Riverside City Council on ______________________________. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this day 
_______________. 
 
____________________________________ 
CLERK 



 
 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2022 
AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

 
TO:  Riverside City Council 
 
FROM: Tom Garrett, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 22-R-2794 – A resolution accepting the amounts and rates as 

determined by the Budget Commission and authorizing the necessary tax levies 
and certifying them to the county auditor.  

 
EXPLANATION 
Montgomery County Budget Commission has estimated tax rates and amounts anticipated to be 
received by the City in 2023.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Sets the revenue for the City to be used in the 2023 budget. 
 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
N/A 
 
 
EXHIBITS 
Resolution 22-R-2794 
 
 



22-R-2794

Riverside

regular 6th October

5200  Springfield St. Suite 100

Mayor Pete Williams, Deputy Mayor Mike Denning, Councilwoman 
April Franklin, Councilwoman Brenda Fry, Councilman Zach Joseph, 
Councilwoman Sara Lommatzsch, and Councilman Jesse Maxfield

Riverside



22-R-2794



22-R-2794



Riverside

Adopted on: ______________________________________

22-R-2794



Katie Lewallen Riverside

for October 6, 2022

Riverside

22-R-2794



22-R-2794



 
 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2022 
AGENDA ITEM: New Business 

 
TO:  Riverside City Council 
 
FROM: Kathy Bartlett, Public Service Director 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 22-R-2795, Olentangy Drive Bridge agreement with ODOT 
 
EXPLANATION 
This resolution is required by the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) to proceed with 
the Olentangy Bridge Project. This resolution commits the City to our share of the project or 
$94,521. This project has not yet bid. Our share was determined by ODOT’s independent 
estimate. We should not see additional costs unless bids come in high in April.  
 
This bridge rating is a 4 out of 10 or poor condition. The project is to be constructed Spring 2023 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the Mayor and City Council approve the attached legislation 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Our share of this $635,722 project is $94,521 after subtracting Federal and Ohio Public Works 
Commission grants. 
 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
Funds for this project will come from American Rescue Plan Act monies 
 
 
EXHIBITS 
See resolution attached 



Page 1 of 2 

Resolution No. 22-R-2795    PID No.  112372 

F I N A L  R E S O L U T I O N 

The following Final Resolution enacted by the City of Riverside, Ohio, hereinafter 
referred to as the Legislative Authority/Local Public Agency or "LPA", in the matter of the 
stated described project. 

WHEREAS, on the 7th day of May, 2020, the LPA enacted legislation proposing 
cooperation with the Director of Transportation for the described project: 

The project consists of replacing Bridge No. MOT-3048T-0003 (SFN 5770742) 
located on Olentangy Drive over Lilly Creek, including wingwalls, pavement, 
sidewalk, fence, drainage modifications, and sanitary sewer relocation, lying 
within the City of Riverside; and 

WHEREAS, the LPA shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above 
described project as follows: 

The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) of the entire 
cost of the improvement within the city limits, less the amount of Federal-Aid 
funds set aside by the Director of Transportation for the financing of this 
improvement from funds allocated by the Federal Highway Administration, U. 
S. Department of Transportation.

The share of the cost of the LPA is now estimated in the amount of Ninety-Four 
Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-One and - - - - 00/100 Dollars, ($94,521.00), but said 
estimated amount is to be adjusted in order that the LPA's ultimate share of said 
improvement shall correspond with said percentages of actual costs when said actual 
costs are determined; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Transportation has approved said legislation proposing 
cooperation and has caused to be made plans and specifications and an estimate of cost 
and expense for improving the above described highway and has transmitted copies of 
the same to this legislative authority; and 

WHEREAS, The LPA desires the Director of Transportation to proceed with the 
aforesaid highway improvement. 



Page 2 of 2 

   PID No.  112372 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved: 

I. That the estimated sum, of Ninety-Four Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-
One and - - - - 00/100 Dollars, ($94,521.00) is hereby appropriated for the
improvement described above and the fiscal officer is hereby authorized and
directed to issue an order on the treasurer for said sum upon the requisition of
the Director of Transportation to pay the cost and expense of said
improvement.  We hereby agree to assume in the first instance, the share of
the cost and expense over and above the amount to be paid from Federal
funds.

II. That the LPA hereby requests the Director of Transportation to proceed with
the aforesaid highway improvement.

III. That the LPA enter into a contract with the State, and that the City Manager
be, and is hereby authorized to execute said contract, providing for the payment
of the LPA the sum of money set forth herein above for improving the described
project.

IV. That the LPA transmit to the Director of Transportation a fully executed copy of
this Resolution.

This is to certify that we have compared the foregoing copy of Resolution with the original 
record thereof, found in the record of the proceedings of the LPA, and which Resolution 
was duly passed by the LPA on ________________, and that the same is a true and 
correct copy of the record of said Resolution and the action of said LPA thereon. 

We further certify that said Resolution and the action of said LPA thereon is recorded in 
the minutes of said LPA in on ____________________________________  , 2022  .

Legislative Authority of the 
City of Riverside, Ohio 

City Manager 

SEAL  
(If Applicable) Clerk (Secretary Ex-Officio) 

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



   PID No.  112372 

FISCAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE 
(Chapter 5521 and Section 5705.41, Ohio Revised Code) 

I hereby certify to that the money, to wit: $94,521.00 required for the payment of the 
cost other than that thereof assumed by the Federal Government, for the improvement 
of that portion of Olentangy Drive, lying within the corporate limits of the City of 
Riverside, more particularly described as follows: 

The project consists of replacing Bridge No. MOT-3048T-0003 (SFN 5770742) 
located on Olentangy Drive over Lilly Creek, including wingwalls, pavement, 
sidewalk, fence, drainage modifications, and sanitary sewer relocation, lying 
within the City of Riverside; and 

has been lawfully appropriated for such purpose and is in the treasury to the credit of, or 
has been levied placed on the duplicate and in process of collection for the appropriate 
fund, and not appropriated for any other purpose; or is being obtained by sale of bonds 
issued on account of said improvement, which bonds are sold and in process of delivery. 

I further certify that this certificate was made, sealed and filed with the legislative 
authority of the City of Riverside, Ohio, after said legislative authority passed the final 
resolution in connection with the within described project; and that this certificate was 
forthwith recorded in the record of the proceedings of said legislative authority, namely: 

Legislative Authority’s Journal, Volume                          , at Page                                    , 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal as said fiscal 

officer, this                              day of                                                   , 20____. 

(Fiscal Officer’s Seal) 
      (If Applicable) 

Fiscal Officer of the City of 
Riverside, Ohio 

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



Page 1 of 6 

   PID No.  112372 

C O N T R A C T 
(Chapter 5521, Ohio Revised Code) 

This contract is made by and between the State of Ohio, Department of 
Transportation, acting through its director (hereinafter referred to as the "STATE"), 1980 
West Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43223, and the City of Riverside, (hereinafter 
referred to as the legislative authority/Local Public Agency or "LPA"). 

WITNESSTH: 

WHEREAS, Chapter 5521 of the Ohio Revised Code provides that the legislative 
authority may cooperate with the STATE in a highway project made by and under the 
supervision of the Director of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, through the enactment of preliminary legislation, the LPA and the STATE 
have agreed to cooperate in the highway project described below; and 

WHEREAS, through the enactment of final legislation, the LPA has committed to pay 
an estimated amount of money as its share of the total estimated cost and expense of the 
highway project described below; and 

WHEREAS, the fiscal officer of the LPA has filed with the LPA a certificate stating that 
sufficient moneys are available, as required by Chapter 5521 and Section 5705.41 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.  A duplicate certificate is attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the final legislation, the LPA hereby enters into this 
contract with the STATE to provide for payment of the agreed portion of the cost of the 
highway project and any additional obligations for the highway project described below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the performances of mutual 
covenants hereinafter set forth, it is agreed by parties hereto as follows: 

SECTION I:   RECITALS 

The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as a material part of this contract. 

SECTION II:   PURPOSE 

The purpose of this contract is to set forth requirements associated with the highway 
project described below (hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT") and to establish the 
responsibilities for the administration of the PROJECT by the LPA and the STATE. 

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



Page 2 of 6 

   PID No.  112372 

SECTION III:  LEGAL REFERENCES 

This contract is established pursuant to Chapter 5521 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

SECTION IV:  SCOPE OF WORK  

The work to be performed under this contract shall consist of the following: 

The project consists of replacing Bridge No. MOT-3048T-0003 (SFN 5770742) 
located on Olentangy Drive over Lilly Creek, including wingwalls, pavement, 
sidewalk, fence, drainage modifications, and sanitary sewer relocation, lying 
within the City of Riverside. 

SECTION V: FINANCIAL PARTICIPATION 

1. The STATE agrees to provide the necessary funds as enumerated in this section
and allowed by law for the financing of this project.

2. The STATE may allocate the money contributed by the LPA in whatever manner
it deems necessary in financing the cost of construction, right-of-way, engineering,
and incidental expenses, notwithstanding the percentage basis of contribution by
the LPA.

3. The total cost and expenses for the project are only an estimate and the total cost
and expenses may be adjusted by the STATE.  If any adjustments are required,
payment of additional funds shall correspond with the percentages of actual costs
when said actual costs are determined, and as requested, by the Director of
Transportation.

4. The LPA agrees to pay to the STATE its share of the total estimated cost expense
for the above highway project in the amount of Ninety-Four Thousand Five
Hundred Twenty-One and - - - - 00/100 Dollars, ($94,521.00).

5. The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) of the entire
cost of the improvement within the city limits, less the amount of Federal-
Aid funds set aside by the Director of Transportation for the financing of this
improvement from funds allocated by the Federal Highway Administration,
U. S. Department of Transportation.

6. The LPA agrees to assume and bear One Hundred Percent (100%) of the cost of
any construction items required by the LPA on the entire project, which are not
necessary for the improvement, as determined by the State and Federal Highway
Administration.

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



Page 3 of 6 

   PID No.  112372 

7. The LPA agrees that change orders and extra work contracts required fulfilling the
construction contracts shall be processed as needed.  The STATE shall not
approve a change order or extra work contract until it first gives notice, in writing,
to the LPA.  The LPA shall contribute its share of the cost of these items in
accordance with other sections herein.

SECTION VI:  RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITIES 

1. The LPA agrees that all right-of-way required for the described project will be
acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State and Federal
regulations.  The LPA also understands that right-of-way costs include eligible
utility costs.

2. The LPA agrees that all utility accommodation, relocation, and reimbursement will
comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR 645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual,
including that:

A. Arrangements have been or will be made with all utilities where facilities are
affected by the described PROJECT, that the utilities have agreed to make
all necessary removals and/or relocations to clear any construction called
for by the plans of this PROJECT, and that the utilities have agreed to make
the necessary removals and/or relocations after notification by the LPA or
STATE.

B. The LPA shall, at its own expense, make all removals and/or relocations of
publicly-owned utilities which do not comply with the reimbursement
provisions of the ODOT Utilities Manual.  Publicly-owned facilities which do
comply with the reimbursement provisions of the ODOT Utilities Manual will
be removed and/or relocated at project expense, exclusive of betterments.

C. The removals and/or relocation of all utilities shall be done in such a manner
as not to interfere with the operation of the contractor constructing the
PROJECT and that the utility removals and/or relocations shall be approved
by the STATE and performed in accordance with the provisions of the
ODOT Construction and Materials Specifications.

SECTION VII: ADDITIONAL PROJECT OBLIGATIONS 

1. The STATE shall initiate the competitive bid letting process and award the
PROJECT in accordance with ODOT's policies and procedures.

2. The LPA agrees:

A. To keep said highway open to traffic at all times;
B. To maintain the PROJECT in accordance with the provisions of the statutes

relating thereto,

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



Page 4 of 6 

   PID No.  112372 

C. To make ample financial and other provisions for such maintenance of the
PROJECT after its completion;

D. To maintain the right-of-way and keep it free of obstructions in a manner
satisfactory to the STATE and hold said right-of-way inviolate for public
highway purposes;

E. To place and maintain all traffic control devices conforming to the Ohio
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices on the project in compliance with
the provisions of Section 4511.11 of the Ohio Revised Code;

F. To regulate parking in accordance with Section 4511.66 of the Ohio Revised
Code, unless otherwise controlled by local ordinance or resolution.

SECTION VIII: DISPUTES 

In the event that any disputes arise between the STATE and LPA concerning interruption 
of or performance pursuant to this contract, such disputes shall be resolved solely and 
finally by the Director of Transportation. 

SECTION IX:  NOTICE  

Notice under this contract shall be directed as follows: 

City of Riverside  Ohio Department of Transportation 
5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100 Office of Contract Sales & Estimating 
Riverside, Ohio  1980 West Broad Street, 1st Floor 
45431  Columbus, Ohio 43223 

SECTION X: FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. In carrying out this contract, LPA shall not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin,
disability, or age. LPA will ensure that applicants are hired and that employees are
treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, sex, national
origin (ancestry), disability, genetic information, or age (40 years or older), sexual
orientation, or military status (past, present, future). Such action shall include, but
not be limited to, the following: Employment, Upgrading, Demotion, or Transfer;
Recruitment or Recruitment Advertising; Layoff or Termination; Rates of Pay or
other forms of Compensation; and Selection for Training including Apprenticeship.

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



Page 5 of 6 

   PID No.  112372 

2. To the extent necessary under Ohio law, LPA agrees to post in conspicuous
places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting
forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. LPA will, in all solicitations or
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of LPA, state that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race,
religion, color, sex, national origin (ancestry), disability, genetic information, age
(40 years or older), sexual orientation, or military status (past, present, future). If
applicable, the LPA shall incorporate the foregoing requirements of this paragraph
in all of its contracts for any of the work prescribed herein (other than subcontracts
for standard commercial supplies or raw materials) and will require all of its
subcontractors for any part of such work to incorporate such requirements in all
subcontracts for such work.

3. LPA agrees to fully comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC
Sec. 2000. LPA shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin
in its programs or activities. The Director of Transportation may monitor the
Contractor's compliance with Title VI.

SECTION XI:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. This contract constitutes the entire contract between the parties.  All prior
discussions and understandings between the parties are superseded by this
contract.

2. Neither this contract nor any rights, duties or obligations described herein shall be
assigned by either party hereto without the prior express written consent of the
other party.

3. Any change to the provisions of this contract must be made in a written amendment
executed by both parties.

4. This contract and any claims arising out of this contract shall be governed by the
laws of the State of Ohio.  Any provision of this contract prohibited by the law of
Ohio shall be deemed void and of no effect.  Any litigation arising out of or relating
in any way to this contract or the performance thereunder shall be brought only in
the courts of Ohio, and the LPA hereby irrevocably consents to such jurisdiction.
To the extent that the STATE is a party to any litigation arising out of or relating in
any way to this contract or the performance thereunder, such an action shall be
brought only in a court of competent jurisdiction in Franklin County, Ohio.

5. All financial obligations of the State of Ohio, as provided in this contract, are subject
to the provisions of Section 126.07 of the Ohio Revised Code.  The financial
obligations of the State of Ohio shall not be valid and enforceable unless funds are
appropriated by the Ohio General Assembly and encumbered by the STATE.
Additionally, it is understood that this financial obligation of the LPA shall not be
valid and enforceable unless funds are appropriated by the LPA's legislative body.

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



Page 6 of 6 

   PID No.  112372 

6. This contract shall be deemed to have been substantially performed only when
fully performed according to its terms and conditions and any modification thereof.

7. LPA agrees that it is currently in compliance and will continue to adhere to the
requirements of Ohio Ethics law as provided by Section 102.03 and 102.04 of the
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION XII: SIGNATURES 

Any person executing this contract in a representative capacity hereby warrants that he/she has 
been duly authorized by his/her principal to execute this contract on such principal behalf. 

Any party hereto may deliver a copy of its counterpart signature page to this Agreement via fax 
or e-mail.  Each party hereto shall be entitled to rely upon a facsimile signature on any other party 
delivered in such a manner as if such signature were an original. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be duly executed 
in duplicate. 

SEAL  
(If Applicable) 

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY 
TRANSPORTATION City of Riverside  

_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Director of Transportation  City Manager 

  ________________________________ 
Date 

Approved: 
Dave Yost 
Attorney General of Ohio 

By:_______________________________ 
Corinna Efkeman 
Unit Coordinator, Transportation 
Executive Agencies Section 

Resolution No. 22-R-2795



 
CITY MANAGER 

PREVIOUS 

UPDATES 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 
 

 

MEMORANDUM  
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers  

FROM:   Chris Lohr, Assistant City Manager 

DATE:   September 9, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Weekend Update 

CC:   Department Directors, City Clerk, Law Director 

 

Administration 
• Staff is working on a webpage and social media postings to help educate residents regarding the 

upcoming vote on aggregation in November.  

Community Development Department 
• Planning and Zoning – Planning Commission will hear two cases in September.  There are no 

cases for BZA this month, but the Board will use this month’s meeting to review and update 
their Bylaws.  

• Permitting Activity– There were 48 zoning permit applications in August. 
• Land Use Plan Community Open House – September 14, 2022, from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. in 

the Mad River Schools Pre-School Gym (801 Old Harshman Rd). 
• Code Enforcement – 967 cases have been initiated to-date. Thirty-three (33) new cases this 

week and twenty-six (26) closed.   

Fire Department 
• The department is still working on transitioning to the new RMS and CAD systems. 
• Battalion Chief Brian Taylor received the “Patriot Award” from the Ohio Federal Security 

Director for significant contributions to the security, safety, and welfare of the United States and 
State of Ohio. We are very proud on BC Taylor for receiving this honor. 

• Application review is being conducted for fulltime firefighter to fill the upcoming vacancy. Two 
new part time finishing up the hiring process and hope to have start dates soon. 

  



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 
 

 

Police Department 
• K-9 Tina is recovering well from the surgery she had to undergo after she broke a tooth during 

training.  
• Officer hiring is moving on to second phase of our hiring process. The candidates that have 

responded will be asked to participate in the agility testing next Saturday 9/17/2022. 
• Detective Sullivan investigated a death in which the subject passed away from using tainted 

drugs. The drug dealer was charged and was found guilty of involuntary manslaughter and was 
sentenced to 8 to 12 years. This case is the first of its kind in Montgomery County and will set 
the boundaries as we move forward in these drug cases.  

Public Service Department 
• 2022 Paving Program:  

o All the concrete curbs, sidewalks and drive aprons on both sides Meyer have been 
removed. 

o Contractor slip formed the curb form Hazelton to Burkhardt on the east side of Meyer. 
o All earth work is completed on east side of Meyer from Lynnhaven to Hazelton. 
o All sidewalks and drive aprons should be poured by this Saturday on the east side of 

Meyer. 
o The contractor distributed letters today, informing residents that next week they will be 

slip forming curb on the west side of Lynnhaven from Burkhardt to Bonnieview. 
o  

• Completed first review of the City’s ADA Plan prepared by Choice One Engineering. 
• Completed document on stormwater and stormwater user fee to be uploaded to website in the 

future. 
• Press Release on the Harshman Wall Repair project on Tuesday 
• Had discussions with MVRPC and ODOT regarding US 35/Woodman interchange lighting. 
• Continued working on the Safe Streets for All grant application with Woolpert. 
• Crews tackled more difficult roadway repairs this week and patched potholes. 

 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers  

FROM:   Josh Rauch, City Manager 

DATE:   September 16, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Weekend Update 

CC:   Department Directors, City Clerk, Law Director 

City Manager’s Office 
• I’ll be in Columbus Monday-Wednesday next week for the annual International City/County 

Management Association (ICMA) conference. I’ll be fully accessible by phone and email. Mr. 

Lohr is also attending. 

• This week I submitted our application for the Safe Streets 4 All (SS4A) grant for the Woodman 

corridor. Huge thanks to Ms. Bartlett and our partners at Montgomery TID and Woolpert for 

their assistance, and to everyone who helped procure and provide letters of support. 

• Department budget requests were due today. Next week I’ll work with Tom and Chris to review 

these numbers and begin finalizing the draft budget. 

o We’ll use this data to begin drafting a “Budget in Brief” document for distribution to the 

Citizen Budget Committee for review (this will hopefully go to them by Monday October 

3rd). Feedback from the Budget Committee will inform our first budget presentation 

with Council, currently scheduled for the October 13th work session.  

Administration 
• Health Insurance Renewal – Staff has started work on insurance renewal for 2023. All 

employees will be completing the  FormFire health questionnaire that will be used to apply for 

membership in the Ohio Benefits Cooperative which is a pool of governmental entities. At the 

same time, staff will continue work to obtain quotes for health insurance renewal as a stand 

alone entity through our current broker  

Community Development Department 
• Planning and Zoning –  

• Economic Development – Materials from the last Land Use Plan Open House are available in 
Council Chambers for public viewing and participation. They’ll remain in place for a few weeks 
while this phase of the process wraps up. Folks interested in participating online can do so via 
the City’s website.  

• Code Enforcement – 1003 cases to-date; 404 currently open. 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

Finance Department 
• Staff are beginning the process of renumbering our chart of accounts. 

• Implementation check-in will occur Thursday and Friday next week with SSI. 

• Sandbox deployment for the new system should begin by the end of the month.  

Fire Department 
• Continuing software updates. Huber CAD Software has been delayed due to connectivity issues 

between Huber and Montgomery County. 

• Finished 1st draft of 2023 budget. 

• FF Jon Mathy presentation at council meeting and reception followed. 

• Making preparations for Fire Prevention month activities. 

• Hired two new part time firefighters, one resigned before her first shift to take a fulltime 
position with Dayton EMS. 

Police Department 
• Officer Deton Brookshire attended and completed a class in regard to mental health issues 

called: Detecting Misleading Behaviors. 

• Major Jackson attended FEMA training class starting 9/12/2022 thru 2/15/2022. The class was 

held at the Center for Domestic Preparedness. The classes included Bomb Threat management 

and Planning, Integrating Communications, Assessment and Tactics, De-escalation and it was the 

train the trainer which allows Major Jackson to train all of our officers. 

• The candidates that have responded for a Police Officer job will participate in the agility testing 

Saturday 9/17/2022 and on 9/24/2022. We have a total of 4 candidates. 

• The go live date for the new RMS System in Huber Heights has been pushed back to the Middle 

of November. 

Public Service Department 
• 2022 Paving Program:  

o Curb work continues on Lynnhaven and sidewalk/curb ramp and grading work is being 

performed on Meyer.  

o 2022 Paint striping is scheduled to start tonight on the state routes and Harshman Road.  

• Worked with contractor, RB Jergens, to delay wall project a week as to not to interfere with the 

Air Force marathon.  

• Coordinated AT&T project on Airway Road and had posted to FB 

• Began drafting a new curb, sidewalk and drive approach assessment resolution  

• Discussed US 35/Woodman bridge lighting with ODOT District 7.  

• Created FB post for new flashing yellow signal head to be introduced at Woodman and 

Burkhardt 

• Crews crack sealed the walking paths and basketball courts. Performed hazard communication 

training. 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers  

FROM:   Josh Rauch, City Manager 

DATE:   September 23, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Weekend Update 

CC:   Department Directors, City Clerk, Law Director 

City Manager’s Office 
• I had a productive conference at ICMA last week. It was good to connect with peers and many of 

the sessions were interesting. Some key takeaways: 

o Recruitment continues to be a significant challenge regionally and nationally, 

particularly in finance, HR, and public safety 

o Staff with ICMA’s Center for Public Safety Management recommend expanding diverse 

recruitment initiatives as one of the best ways to find qualified applicants. However, 

there are no silver bullets to the recruitment challenges we face, and many large cities 

are down hundreds of public safety positions. 

o I obtained some leads on HR consulting firms that can help perform class/comp studies 

• I’m still getting caught up from emails and calls that came in while I was in Columbus. 

• I’ve adjusted the methodology for stormwater utility fee per last night’s work session and will 

review with Dalma. 

Administration 
• Health Insurance Renewal Update - FormFire Health Questionnaire has been completed by 55% 

of full-time employees. First renewal quote is due from United Healthcare around Oct. 1st. 

Community Development Department 
• Planning and Zoning – Staff are working on a number of minor code revisions which will go 

before Planning Commission and City Council in the coming months. 

• Economic Development – Staff have a meeting with AES next week to discuss the utility pole 
installation along East Springfield St. 

• Code Enforcement – Staff followed up on several public nuisance cases this week involving lack 

of trash/water service. 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

Finance Department 
• Staff have begun the process of renumbering the chart of accounts. Follow-up with SSI will occur 

next week. 

• Josh, Chris, and Tom reviewed the General Fund budget. Work on a draft budget book will begin 
next week.  

• SSI sandbox implementation and training begins next week re: payroll. 

Fire Department 
• Good news! The remounted F550 medic chassis, replacing the one that got totaled, is in at 

Horton being built! It should be here mid-October. The chassis for new medic on order is 
expected to arrive yet this year and hope to have soon after the first of the year, but could be 
sooner! 

• With Huber’s CAD go live pushed back we are working on getting our new RMS integrated with 
the current CAD system. Began training on the new RMS system. 

• Crews participated WHS homecoming parade and Bon Fire.  

• Annual Preventative Maintenance and Pump test are being completed on engines through the 
DFD Garage. 

Police Department 
• The candidates that have responded for a Police Officer job will participate in the agility testing 

Saturday, 9/24/2022. We have a total of 2 candidates. 

• K-9 Tina is still recovering after her surgery. She is only cleared to do narcotic detection. 

• Carroll High School job shadow. 3 students participated at the Police Department on 9/22/2022.  

• The Police Department personnel are filling out Form Fire information for insurance purposes in 

2023. 

• Reimbursement from BWC for the purchase of bullet proof vest. The amount was 2400 dollars. 

Public Service Department 
• 2022 Paving Program: 

o The curb on Lynnhaven was completed. Drive aprons on the west side from Burkhardt 

to Bonnieview are open for use. Backfill has been completed along curb and aprons 

from Bonnieview to Longview. Asphalt has been placed behind the drive aprons on the 

east side of Myer. 

• Harshman Wall Repair: Work began this week on this project. Several wall sections have been 

removed. 

• 2022 Citywide Paint Striping: 25% of the city’s streets have been striped by A&A Safety. Crews 

are working during day and night 

• Kroger’s contractor started work on Woodman. All street cuts along the existing curb have been 

completed. 25% of curb is removed. The north drive apron has been removed. Kroger    expects 

to have their work completed by October 14. 

• Work at the Burkhardt/Woodman intersection has been halted due to Kroger work on 

Woodman. Work is to resume on October 16. 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

• Joint repair work continues on West Springfield. 

• SR 201/Harshman intersection: All paving work is complete 

• SR 202/Needmore intersection: Paving is complete on the center lanes. Surface course to be 

placed on outside turn lanes 

• Crews completed the following this week: 

o Applied 3 tons of asphalt patching potholes 

o Finished sweeping the main roads for a second time 

o Started hillside trimming on Springfield and SR 4 

o Mowed Cemetery and Memorial Park 

o Cleaned graffiti at Shellabarger 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers  

FROM:   Josh Rauch, City Manager 

DATE:   September 30, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Weekend Update 

CC:   Department Directors, City Clerk, Law Director 

City Manager’s Office 
• This week I completed an internal line-item draft of the FY2023 budget. Thanks to all the 

Department Heads and staff for their help and assistance with this. I’ll be using this information 

to prepare a draft budget-in-brief which will be circulated to the City Council and Budget 

Committee next week. We are on target to discuss the preliminary budget at our October 13 

work session. 

• I also completed a renumbering of our existing chart of accounts this week and provided 

remapping information to SSI. Thanks to Tom for his assistance with several key line items. I’m 

confident the renumbering will enable us to better understand our financial picture and create 

informative reports. 

• We received an early draft audit from Julian & Grube (our auditors) today. More information will 

be shared with Council in the coming weeks. 

Administration 
• Health Insurance Renewal Update - FormFire Health Questionnaire has been completed by all 

employees. 

• City Backup Systems - TechAdvisors is working to replace the existing temporary backup system 

with new network attached storage (NAS) devices. The end network storage system will include 

redundant backups located at two different City facilities. 

Community Development Department 
• Planning and Zoning – Shout out to Nia who attended and participated in the OKI (Ohio, 

Kentucky, Indiana) Regional Planning Conference this week in Louisville, KY. I know she 
represented Riverside well.  

• Economic Development – Work on key development projects (Kroger, etc.) continues to 
progress. We are compiling information regarding the power pole situation on Springfield St. 
and will seek a follow up meeting with AES.  

• Code Enforcement – 1,046 cases have been initiated YTD. 371 remain open. 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

Finance Department 
• SSI Payroll configuration began this week using imported data from our current system. This 

process continues next week. 

• Chart of accounts renumbering info was provided to SSI 

•  

Fire Department 
• Continuing the software training and implementation process 

• Scheduled fulltime FF interviews to fill FF Berger’s vacancy. 

• Chief and Battalion Chiefs attend Firehouse Fire Expo 2022 in Columbus. 

• Working trailer fire on Kropf Dr. Thursday night. No injuries, cause is under investigation. 

Police Department 
• We have a total of 2 candidates still left in the process to establish an eligibility list for Police 

Officer. The 2 candidates are moving on to the interviews that are scheduled for Wednesday 

October 5th. 

• K-9 Tina is still recovering after her surgery. She continues to only be cleared to do narcotic 

detection. 

• Carroll High School job shadow. 3 students participated at the Police Department on 9/22/2022.  

• The Riverside Police Department was awarded approximately 23 thousand dollars for the 

IDEP/STEP grant. The grant is no match and focuses on driving under the influence and overall 

safety on the roadways in our community. 

• Multiple officers on road construction details at Old Troy and Needmore. 

Public Service Department 
2022 Paving Program: 

• Lynnhaven/Meyer 

o All the sidewalk / curb ramps on the west side of Lynnhaven from Burkhardt to Fenwick 

Ct are complete. 

o All back filling and topsoil is complete on the west side of Lynnhaven from Burkhardt to 

Fenwick Ct. 

o No work was done on Meyer. 

• Kroger/Woodman Improvements 

o Contractor has removed all the old curb and installed the subbase all compaction testing 

is completed in the median of Woodman Drive. 

o Curb installation will start next week. 

• Springfield Street 

o Still working on pinning concrete joints in the middle lanes. 

• Needmore/201 

o All paving and paint striping is complete. 

• Needmore/202 



 
 

5200 Springfield Street, Suite 100     Riverside, OH 45431-1265     P: 937.233.1801     F: 937.237.5965     www.riverside.oh.us 

 

o All paving and paint striping is complete. 

o Mast arms have been installed. 

o Street Lights have not been transferred to mast arms yet. 

• City Paint Striping  

o About 80 percent of our streets are complete. 

• Harshman Wall 

o Five sections have been torn out  

o 3 sections have had the concrete footers poured 

• Crews made a large repaired on Mertland Ave. using 12 ton of asphalt, also cracked sealed it 

along with 3 other streets. 

• Crews mowed across the City including Cemetery and Memorial Park 


	22-O-808 Exhibit A - Permitting and Fees Code Revision.pdf
	CHAPTER 135 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT0F PERMITTING AND RELATED FEES
	135.01 Creation and head. Issuance of permits; fees.
	135.02 Director's powers and duties. Revocation or denial of permits.
	135.03 Director's qualifications and experience. Development review deposit.
	135.04 Director's compensation.

	CHAPTER 137 DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING FEES
	137.01 Development review deposit.
	137.02 Zoning and occupancy fees.

	CHAPTER 149 PLANNING AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT1F
	149.01 Creation and head.
	149.02 Director's powers and duties.
	149.03 Director's qualifications and experience.
	149.04 Director's compensation.


	2022-09-09 Weekend Update.pdf
	Administration
	Community Development Department
	Fire Department
	Police Department
	Public Service Department




